Public Document Pack

Notice of Meeting

Environment Advisory Group
Open Forum

Monday 31 July 2023 at 6.05 pm
In Council Chamber Council Offices
Market Street Newbury

Attendee Zoom link:
https://westberks-gov-uk.zoom.us/j/83764517969

Date of despatch of Agenda: 25 July 2023 (reissued 27 July 2023)

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents
referred to in Part | reports, please contact Jack Karimi on (01635) 503605
e-mail: Jack.Karimil@westberks.gov.uk

Further information and Minutes are also available on the Council’'s website at
www.westberks.gov.uk

¥ West Berkshire



https://westberks-gov-uk.zoom.us/j/83764517969
mailto:Jack.Karimi1@westberks.gov.uk
http://www.westberks.gov.uk/

Agenda - Environment Advisory Group Open Forum to be held on Monday, 31 July 2023

To:

(continued)

Councillors Adrian Abbs, Dennis Benneyworth, Nick Carter,
Carolyne Culver, Stuart Gourley, Paul Kander, Geoff Mayes, Vicky Poole,
Richard Somner and Martha Vickers

Substitutes: Councillors Owen Jeffery, Janine Lewis, David Marsh, Joanne Stewart and

Tony Vickers

Agenda

Part | Page No.

1

Welcome
Councillor Adrian Abbs, Portfolio Holder for Climate Action, Recycling
and Biodiversity

Update of the Existing Climate Emergency Declaration to Include 1-6
Ecological Emergency
Kofi Adu-Gyamfi, Service Lead - Climate Change

Motion to Declare an Ecological Emergency and to Take Associated 7-8
Actions
Councillor Carolyne Culver

New Waste Strategy Development
Peter Jones, Eunomia Research and Consulting

Context of Previous Micro Hydro Project Attempt in West Berkshire
Councillor Roger Hunneman, Newbury Town Council

Potential Micro Hydro Scheme for West Berkshire
Turbulent

Pollution Monitoring System
Bijan Mohandes, Technocomm Consulting

Any Other Business
e To invite topics for future EAG Open Forum Meeting Forward Plan.

Next Meeting Date
e Monday 25 September
e Monday 27 November

¥ West Berkshire




Agenda - Environment Advisory Group Open Forum to be held on Monday, 31 July 2023
(continued)

Sarah Clarke
Service Director: Strategy and Governance

¥ West Berkshire




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

West Berkshire Council - Declaring an Ecological/Biodiversity Emergency

What are we proposing?

We are proposing strengthening our current climate emergency declaration to reflect the need to
protect and enhance West Berkshire’s natural environment, wildlife, and biodiversity. We would
propose doing this by updating our existing climate emergency declaration to a ‘climate and
ecological emergency’. The ecological and climate emergencies are closely linked and to solve one,
we must address the other. Our Environment Strategy and Delivery Plan have therefore already taken
steps to protect our District’s natural environment. Updating the declaration to specifically mention
the ecological emergency will reinforce the Council’s commitment and raise awareness of the
importance of protecting all aspects of the natural environment.

Why is this important?

The 2019 State of Nature report shows that 41% of UK species have decreased in abundance in the
last 50 years and around 15% of UK species are threatened with extinction. West Berkshire has
biodiversity of significant importance including 51 Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), 500 local
wildlife sites (11% of the district) and three Special Areas of Conservation (SAC) which are of
international importance. Improving nature also contributes to creating a strong economy and
improves the health and wellbeing of residents.

Other proposed changes
e Terminology used in the current Climate Emergency declaration

Since the declaration of the climate emergency, terms in addition to ‘carbon neutrality’ have been
used to describe carbon and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions leading to confusion. The Environment
Delivery Team, set up as a result of the climate emergency declaration and adopted Environment
Strategy, have revisited terms used to describe carbon and GHGs. This aims to reset and clarify
terminology to members, officers, residents, businesses and community groups, and support
effective and accurate communication.

Based on research, a separate briefing paper has been prepared which outlines several key
definitions and how these definitions relate to the Council’s activity at a Council and District wide
level.

In relation to the climate emergency declaration and proposed amendment to include the ecological
emergency, this has provided an opportunity to amend the carbon/GHG terminology used and
provide clarity on the actual approach the Council has adopted on carbon and GHGs.  Currently the
climate emergency declaration details ‘Carbon neutrality’. We propose to change the declaration to
‘Net Zero Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions’ or ‘Net Zero’ for short.

‘Carbon neutrality’ means balancing greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions by offsetting — or removing
from the atmosphere — an equivalent amount of carbon for the amount produced. This means a
commitment to carbon neutral does not require a commitment to reduce overall emissions. In
contrast, a commitment to ‘Net Zero carbon’ or ‘Net Zero GHG’/ ‘Net Zero’ means making changes to
reduce carbon or GHG emissions to the lowest amount — and offsetting as a last resort.

Page 1


https://nbn.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/09/State-of-Nature-2019-UK-full-report.pdf

Making this change to using the term ‘Net Zero’ will also bring the Council in line with Government
and business terminology.

e Clarification on targets

Since the declaration of the climate emergency in 2019, there has been a growing distinction
between actions that the Council can take to reduce the impact from its own operations and
activities, and those actions that can seek to influence and affect the net zero journey for the District
as a whole. Data showing progress for both are reported separately within the Environment Strategy
Annual Progress Reports. The control that West Berkshire Council has in each of these cases is very
different. The proposed changes outlined above provide an opportunity for clarifying the targets
that West Berkshire Council is focused on.

- Achieving net zero by 2030 for the Council’s operations and activities; and
- Facilitating, influencing, promoting and encouraging a reduction in emissions across West
Berkshire to enable net zero to be achieved as soon as possible for the District.

This recognises that there are factors affecting the District emissions that are outside the control of <« [ Formatted: Normal, No bullets or numbering

the Council. However, there is a key role for the Council to play in demonstrating climate action
leadership and using its position to bring about action within communities and amongst businesses.

Our current Climate emergency declaration:

r~ ™
This Council notes that:

1. All levels of government (national, regional and local) have a responsibility to limit
the negative impacts of climate breakdown. It is impartant for the residents of West
Berkshire and the UK that we commit to working towards carbon neutrality as quickly
as possible.

2. The conseguences of global temperature rising above 1.5°C are so severe that
preventing this from happening must be of the utmost urgency.

3. Bold climate action can deliver economic benefits in terms of new jobs, economic
savings and market opportunities (as well as improved health and wellbeing) but will
also require changes in individuals' lifestyles and have a cost implication to both the
individual and the state.

West Berkshire Council therefore:
* Declares a Climate Emergency:

* Will create a strategic plan for West Berkshire that aims to deliver carbon neutrality
by 2030.

» Calls on HM Government to provide the Council with the powers and resources to
make the 2030 target possible.

« Will work with other autharities to determine and implement where practicable best
practice methods to limit global warming to less than 1.5°C.

Page 2



Proposed Climate and Ecological emergency declaration:

The Council notes that:

1. Alllevels of government (national, regional, and local) have a responsibility to limit the negative
impacts of climate breakdown. It is important for the residents of West Berkshire and the UK that
we commit to working towards Net Zero as quickly as possible.

2. The consequences of global temperature rising above 1.5°C are so severe that preventing this from
happening must be of utmost urgency.

3. The current rate of habitat degradation and loss of biodiversity within West Berkshire and the UK is
likely to be having a detrimental impact and needs to be prevented.

4. Bold climate and ecological action can deliver social and economic benefits in terms of new jobs,
economic savings, and improved health and wellbeing but will also require changes in individuals’
lifestyles and have a cost implication to both the individual and the state.

West Berkshire Council therefore:

e Declares a Climate and Ecological Emergency

e Will take action to reduce emissions from its operations and activities in order to achieve Net Zero
by 2030

e Will continue to revise and deliver on our strategic plan for West Berkshire that aims to facilitate
and influence the achievement of deliver Net Zero for the District as soon as possible.by-20636-

e Will ensure the ecological emergency is highlighted alongside our climate action to maximise
benefits.

e (Calls on HM Government to provide the Council with the powers and resources to make the
achievement of our Climate and Ecological targets possible.

e Will work with other authorities and external stakeholders to determine and implement where
practicable to best practice methods to contribute to limiting global warming to less than 1.5°C and
protecting the natural environment within West Berkshire and beyond.

Proposed ‘Ecological Emergency’ Actions:

e Ensure the Environment Strategy and the Environment Strategy Delivery Plan emphasise the
importance of ecological protection alongside Net Zero.

e Work with local authorities and other partners in the development of a Local Nature
Recovery Strategy for Berkshire ensuring the opportunities for biodiversity protection and
recovery in West Berkshire are maximised.

e Introduce a ‘Climate and Ecological impact assessment tool’. This will ensure climate and
ecological priorities are at the forefront of the decision making and project planning
processes within the Council.

e Develop a Green and Blue Infrastructure framework for the Council to highlight our priorities
for ensuring the environment is managed for biodiversity and our residents.

Page 3




Benchmarking Against Similar Declarations by Selected Other UK Councils

“Ecological Emergency”

South Oxfordshire District Council: Ecological Emergency declared 11/02/21 which builds on

the Climate Emergency declared in April 2019. Actions:

(¢]

Renamed the Climate Emergency advisory committee to Climate and Ecological
Emergencies advisory committee

Add ecological impact implications alongside those for climate and sustainability in
committee and council reports.

Ensure the climate and ecological emergencies are considered strategic priorities for
planning policy and design guides for new development.

Establish a biodiversity steering group.

Set measurable targets and standards for biodiversity increase, in both species and
quantities.

Work with partners to develop the nature recovery networks and nature recovery
strategy for Oxfordshire.

Look for opportunities to work in partnership with local charities and environmental
organisations to deliver nature recovery in South Oxfordshire

Develop a district wide Tree Planting Policy and Strategy, including having Member
Tree Champions, to support nature protection and recovery and carbon
sequestration

Build on the work of the Thames Champion to improve the ecology of the Thames
and its banks and flood plains, a hugely important habitat in our District

Ensure the Strategic Property Review considers opportunities for biodiversity
enhancements and tree planting on Council landholdings

Investigate new approaches to nature recovery such as habitat banking that deliver
biodiversity objectives and provide new investment opportunities

Embed climate action and ecological initiatives within all council work areas,
including COVID-19 recovery projects and programmes.

Bristol City Council: In February 2020 Bristol City Council declared an Ecological Emergency.
Vision: From today, we will work together as a city to ensure that 30% of Bristol’s land is
managed for nature. We will create space for nature, and unite to find new, fair and inclusive
ways to reduce and eliminate the threats to habitats and wildlife. Together we will take
action for nature so that both people and wildlife can benefit. They developed a ecological
emergency strategy for the city. In response to the strategy they then produced an ecological
emergency action plan. The strategy has four main goals to support nature recovery by 2030:

[e]

[¢]
[¢]
[¢]

30% of land in Bristol to be managed for the benefit of wildlife

To reduce the use of pesticides in Bristol by at least 50%

For all waterways to have excellent water quality which supports healthy wildlife
To reduce the consumption of products that undermine the health of wildlife and
ecosystems around the world.

South Cambridgeshire District Council: In July 2019 South Cambridgeshire recognised both a

climate and ecological emergency. They agreed to support the aim of doubling nature in
South Cambridgeshire through the doubling nature strategy which sits alongside the sister

Page 4


https://www.southoxon.gov.uk/climate-emergency/ecological-emergency-declared-by-south-oxfordshire-district-council/
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/council-and-mayor/policies-plans-and-strategies/energy-and-environment/bristol-ecological-emergency
https://www.bristolonecity.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/One-City-Ecological-Emergency-Strategy-28.09.20.pdf
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/files/documents/794-ecological-emergency-action-plan/file
https://www.scambs.gov.uk/climate-emergency-and-nature/information-for-community-groups/declaring-a-climate-and-ecological-emergency/
https://www.scambs.gov.uk/climate-emergency-and-nature/information-for-community-groups/declaring-a-climate-and-ecological-emergency/
https://www.scambs.gov.uk/media/18509/doubling-nature-strategy-2021.pdf

document South Cambridgeshire’s zero carbon strategy. Vision: Our vision is to double nature
in South Cambridgeshire by 2050 and, in so doing, enable wildlife and people to thrive and
businesses to prosper, this means more wildlife rich habitats, an increase in tree canopy cover
and better accessibility to green space.
Bath and North East Somerset Council: An ecological emergency was declared in July 2020. In
response to this they produced an action plan. Vision: Our vision is to be nature positive as
an organisation by 2030. This means that B&NES Council will be making a positive
contribution to nature recovery, with all parts of the council integrating the response to the
Ecological Emergency into their decision-making. It will also mean that we are taking a
regional and national lead in responding to the Ecological Emergency, working in step with
communities and partners across the district to restore nature. The actions follow the
following themes:

o Mainstreaming nature recovery in leadership and decision-making
Increasing the extent of land and waterways managed positively for nature
Increasing investment into nature-based solutions and wildlife-friendly interventions
Increasing the abundance and distribution of key species across B&NES
Enabling more people to access and engage with nature
Improving our evidence base and monitoring
Working in partnership

O O 0O O O O

A combined climate and ecological emergency

Bournemouth, Christchurch, and Poole (BCP) Council: A Climate and ecological emergency
was declared in July 2019. Can’t find any wording to indicate how biodiversity is being
tackled as everything seems to be focused on climate change.
Roval Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Council: In June 2019 an environment and
climate emergency was declared. Vision: Our vision is to be a Borough where the community
collectively works together to achieve a sustainable future, protecting and enhancing our
natural environment and achieving net zero carbon emissions by 2050. The Environment and
Climate Strategy focuses on four key themes:
o Circular Economy: More sustainable resource use, increasing recycling rates and
supporting less resource-intensive lifestyles.
o Energy: Reducing consumptions and decarbonising our supply of energy.
o Natural Environment: Supporting biodiversity, health and wellbeing.
o Transport: Reduce the need for carbon intensive travel by encouraging walking and
cycling, as well as investing in digital infrastructure.

Brighton and Hove City Council: Declared a climate and biodiversity emergency in December
2018.

Changing climate emergency to incorporate ecological emergency

Herefordshire Council: In March 2019 Herefordshire Council declared a climate emergency,
this was then strengthened to a ‘Climate and ecological emergency’ in December 2019.
Dorset Council: Declared a climate emergency in May 2019 and updated it to a climate and
ecological emergency in November 2019.

Page 5


https://beta.bathnes.gov.uk/ecological-emergency-action-plan
https://www.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/News/News-Features/Climate-and-Ecological-Emergency/about-the-climate-and-ecological-emergency.aspx
https://www.rbwm.gov.uk/home/environment-and-waste/energy-and-sustainability/environment-and-climate-strategy
https://www.brighton-hove.gov.uk/climate-change
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/climate-2/climate-change
https://www.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/emergencies-severe-weather/climate-emergency/climate-ecological-emergency-strategy/the-climate-and-ecological-emergency-strategy-2021-2023

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 3

Motions submitted for debate atthe Council meeting on 20 July 2023
(@) The following Motion has been submitted in the name of Councillor Culver:
This council notes:

e The UK is one of the most nature depleted countries in the world.

e The explicitand commendable reference to ‘biodiversity’ in the relevant portfolio
holder’s job title.

e Many local authorities have declared an ecological emergency as well as a
climate emergency.

e This council’s officers have assisted wildlife by reducing verge cutting, planting
wildflowers, and supporting the Lockdown Woods project.

e The Environment Act includes an obligation for local authorities to publish a
Local Nature Recovery Strategy.

e This council’s sole ecologist left in June.

e We can all help to protect and restore the natural world and any positive action,
large or small, should be encouraged.

e The draft Local Plan is being revisited by the current council administration.
This council resolves:

e To recognise the precarious state of the natural world by declaring an ecological
emergency.

e To recruit a new ecologist urgently, and ideally more than one, to ensure a.)
planning applications are examined by a trained ecologist and b.) the council
has an appropriate expert who can liaise with Windsor and Maidenhead Council
to fulfil the collective responsibility of local authorities in Berkshire to create a
Local Nature Recovery Strategy.

e Work with residents and campaign groups to encourage action for nature, by
promoting initiatives like #NoMowMay, the planting of trees, the installation of
bird boxes, the creation of hedgehog highways, and so on, using council
communication channels and public education opportunities.

e Undertake the green infrastructure work promised under the current Local Plan
2012-2026 including mapping and categorisation of all public open spaces to
form the basis of a current state assessment of all council managed lands.

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



	Agenda
	2 Update of the Existing Climate Emergency Declaration to Include Ecological Emergency
	3 Motion to Declare an Ecological Emergency and to Take Associated Actions

